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The Tramway Building, located at the southwest corner of 14th and Arapahoe
Streets, consists of the eight story office building and the car barn
building, covering the half block of Arapahoe Street between 14th and 13th Streets.
The exterior is finished with brick of a rich color, laid with wide joints of black
mortar and ornamental white terra cotta.

The architectural style of the Tramway Building shows influence of both the
Renaissance and the Chicago School of architecture. As evidence of its Renaissance
character, it has a strong, heavy horizontal . cornice with an adaptation of acritaria
on its edge. Another characteristic is the contrasts in masonry, While the Chicago
School is indicated by the strong vertical thrust of the brick column of support
with triple windows filling the complete space from column to column, the building's
verticality is further emphasized by the lack of ornamentation on the corners of the
building which may be described as accent by omission. The windows, and the spandrels
between them, create a contrasting column, white in color, compared to the brick
support columns.

With its base, shaft, capital approach to form a classic column, the Tramway
Building represents an early attitude in skyscraper design. A terra cotta belt course
on the third flooy, and another on the second, separate the base of the column. which is
on the ground floor from the shaft or main body of the building.

There are three white terra cotta belt courses on the main office building.

One is a sill course on the third floor, another is a lintel course on the second

floor. These separate the base of the column from the shaft. A third belt course,

below the eighth floor, serves as a transition between the shaft of the column and
the capital, represented by the eighth floor and projecting cornice.

The first floor of the corner office building is faced with rusticated terra
cotta blocks. Each first floor opening is a curved flat arch on both the 14th and
Arapahoe Street facades. The main entrance is centered on 14th Street flanked by the
original light fixtures.

The main entrance lobby is furnished with Tennessee marble flooring, of a light
pink shade, and a veined white Arizona marble wainscot to a height of four feet
with a base of green Vermont marble.

Throughout the building the floors were originally of structural terra cotta
combined with . reinforced concrete. The interior partitions were of hollow tile.

Each floor was generously supplied with vaults and wall safes. The offices of the
treasurer, general manager, and auditor were connected by a pneumatic tube system,
The building had its own light, heating and power plants. The car barn was equipped
with an automatic sprinkler system.

The car barn, originally two stories high, extends the length of Arapahoe Street
between 14th and 13th Streets.and is constructed of the same materials as the office
building. The windows in this portion of the building are arranged in groups of three
beneath curved flat arches with white terra cotta keystones.

A partial third floor was built above the car barn, next to the office building,
which contained an auditorium, gymnasium, shower baths, reading room, barber shop,
and bowling alleys, all for the use of the tramway operators. The bowling alleys
were converted to a training area in 1920.

Virtually no alterations were made on the building until the Tramway Company
sold it to the University of Colorado for $687,500 in 1956. Most of the changes have
been in the interior, where extensive work has been done for more classroom space.

Yet the marble foyer and many of the safes in the building remain today.
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The few changes that have been made to the exterior were done about 1972. At
that time the remaining third story was added to the car barn to tie in the
earlier addition adjacent to the office building. It was designed by John B. McMorran
and the contractor was H.W. Hammond, Co. The tramway garage doors were filled in to
make the entries of a humanized scale. One door was made into a fixed window. Overall
the building has been well maintained and all of the exterior changes have been strictly
in keeping with the character of the building.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Tramway Building is significant in the areas of commerce, transportation,
community planning, education, and architecture. The Denver Tramway Company, the
original owners of the building, had tremendous influence in shaping the physical
growth of the city of Denver. The building has architectural significance in
its design by the prominent architectural firm of Fisher and Fisher. The building
presently serves to facilitate higher education in Coloradq,housing classrooms
and administrative activities of the University of Colorado.

The Tramway Building has been associated with two major institutions during
its life. Its original purpose was to serve the momentous Denver City Tramway
Company. Then, in 1956, the building was sold to the University of Colorado for
its Denver Center.

The history of the Denver Tramway Company begins with the advent of public
transportation in Denver. In 1871 horse drawn cars on tracks were used for
transportation in the downtown area. Electric cable cars were introduced in 1885,
and in 1886 two companies were consolidated to form the Denver Tramway Company.
After fierce competition during the next thirteen years, more companies were
consolidated in 1899 to form the major public transit system of Denver called the
the Denver City Tramway Company. With one later name change, back to Denver
Tramway Company, this organization was to be the key to public transportation
in the Denver area until 1971, when operations were taken over by Denver Metro Transit.

It would not be exaggerating to say that the Denver Tramway Company played
an important role in forming the map of Denver as we see it today. At the turn
of the century, real estate investors bought vacant land in Denver. If they were
of influence, they had the Tramway Company  install their rails, _ which would send
the land prices up with tidy profits for the investors.#here the Denver Tramway
Company's tracks were laid, housing and streets sprung about them. As noted in a
1909 newspaper article, "The Denver City Tramway Co. . . . is the most reliable
barometer for Denver's growth."I- .70, a major interstate highway of today, is
Tocated on what was once part of the Tramway Company's rail system.

The Denver Tramway Company came to power, in part, through the well-known and
influential Evans family. Territorial Governor John Evans was involved in much of
the first rail transportation in Colorado. Governor Evans was one of the founders
of Northwestern University and a physician in the Chicagoarea before he was
appointed by President Lincoln to be the second Territorial Governor of Colorado from
1862 to 1865. During that time he was very involved in the territory's long struggle
for statehood.

Governor Evanss son, William Gray Evans, was more directly involved in the
Denver Tramway Company. He was a chief planner and owner of the two companies that,
consolidated in 1886 to form the Denver Tramway Company,and later he was president
of the Denver City Tramway Company. He was popularly known as “Tramway Bill" or -
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" Napoleon Bill" because of his strict rule of the company. William Gray Evans was
president of the Denver City Tramway Company at the time the Tramway Building was
built. His son, John Evans, II, a graduate of the Massachwsétts Institute of
Technology, was the chief engineer of the company.

John Evans, II,also has many credits to his name. From 1916 to 1952 he
served Denver and the nation in a number of ways: As a member of the staff of
the Provost Marshal General, president of the board of trustees of the University
©of Denver, president of the International Trust Company and of the First National
Bank, participation in the reorganization of the Rio Grande Railroad; he also .served
the Co]orado Museum of Natural History and the State Historical Soc1ety at
crucial periods in their history. In addition he was a member of the Federal
Reserve Board, on the boards of Colorado Fuel and Iron Corporation, Holly Sugar,
Colorado Interstate Gas, Colorado Milling and Elevator, and other companies in
Colorado. ' He also served as a director of the Denver Tramway Company from 1925 to
1967.

Due to the expansion of the company, the old offices were no longer adequate,
and in 1910 t'he Denver Tramway Company chose W.E. and A.A. Fisher, prominent
Denver architects, to design their new office building. Well known Denver
buildings done by this firm include: Colorado National Bank, Railway Exchange
Building, Ideal Building (remodeling), Guaranty - Bank Building, Security Building,
Neusteter's Store Building, South High School, and the A.C. Foster Building
(University Building).

The consulting engineers for the Tramway Building were Crocker and Ketchum;
the general contractors were Whitnery-Steen Co.; and the building was planned
and erected under the supervision of John Evans, II, chief engineer of the engineering
department .of the Tramway Company.

The building, ready for occupancy in May of 1911, allowed the company to
concentrate, in a central location, its somewhat scattered departments. When
the building was designed, the Tramway Company recognized the need to plan for
growth and they 1n1t1a11y occupied five floors of the eight story structure and
rented out the remaining three until the need for them arose.

In 1956 the building was sold to the Un1vers1ty of Coloradoyhich has kept
the bui]ding in immaculate condition while using it for class room and admini-
strative space. The onlynoticeable changes are to the interior to help it
conform to its new function. The marble foyer remains as a historic reminder to
all who enter.

With careful attention paid to the building's character, the large garage
doors on the car barn were changed to human scaled entrances, and an addition
was made to complete the third floor over the car barn. These are changes that
most people would not notice and this building is in full spirit with its
original characterization on the urban Denver setting.



